
 
 

OPEN MEETING 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL  
ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE* 

 
Monday, July 08, 2024 – 1:30 p.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Board Room/Virtual Meeting  
24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, California 

 
Laguna Woods Village owners/residents are welcome to participate in all open committee meetings and 
submit comments or questions virtually using one of the following options: 

1.  Join the committee meeting via a Zoom link at: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/93156707417 or by 
calling 669-900-6833 Webinar ID:93156707417.   
2.  Via email to meeting@vmsinc.org any time before the meeting is scheduled to begin or 
during the meeting. Please use the name of the committee in the subject line of the email. 
Your name and unit number must be included. 

 
NOTICE AND AGENDA 

This Meeting May Be Recorded 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
2. Approval of the Agenda 
3. Approval of the Meeting Report for June 10, 2024 
4. Remarks of the Chair 
5. Member Comments - (Items Not on the Agenda) 
6. Response to Member Comments 
7. Department Head Update 
 
8. Consent Calendar: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered 

routine and will be enacted by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item 
is removed from the Consent Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) 
shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the Committee. 

 
a. Over-The-Counter Variances – None  

 
9. Variance Requests  

a. 5367-C Variance to Replace Window with Sliding Glass Door and Paver Patio on 
Common Area 
 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/93156707417
mailto:meeting@vmsinc.org


Third Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
Regular Open Meeting 
July 08, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
10. Items for Discussion and Consideration 

a. Revision to Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts  
b. Revision to Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 
c. Your Mutual Resale Fees At Work  

 
11. Items for Future Agendas   

a. Revision to Standard 11A: Flooring for Second and Third Floor Manors & the 
Elimination of the Third Laguna Hills Mutual Interior Hard-Surface Flooring 
Complaint Rules  

b. Revision to Standard 22: Patio and Balcony Covers; Aluminum and Vinyl 
c. Revision to Standard 29: Solariums 
d. Revision to Standard: 37: Patio and Balcony Awnings & Covers 
e. Revision to Standard 38: Patio Enclosures 
f. Revision to Standard 39: Balcony Enclosures  
g. Revision to Standard 41A: Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings  
h. Enact Standard 41C: Solar Panels, Carports and Patio Covers  

 
12. Committee Member Comments 
13. Date of Next Meeting:   Monday, August 12, 2024 at 9:30 a.m. 
14. Adjournment  
 

*A quorum of the Third Board or more may also be present at the meeting. 

 

  
 
 
 

 
Jim Cook, Chair 

Alan Grimshaw, Manor Alterations Manager 
Telephone: 949-597-4616 



Agenda Item #3 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #3 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #3 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item #3 
Page 4 of 4



Th
ird

 A
CS

C 
– 

M
on

da
y,

 Ju
ly

 8
, 2

02
4 

Va
ria

nc
e 

Re
qu

es
ts

 
Ag

en
da

 
Ite

m
 #

9 
M

an
or

 A
dd

re
ss

 
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 R

eq
ue

st
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 R
eq

ue
st

 a
nd

 S
ta

ff 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
(*

) 

A 
53

67
-C

 
Re

pl
ac

e 
W

in
do

w
 w

ith
 S

lid
in

g 
Gl

as
s 

Do
or

 a
nd

 P
av

er
 P

at
io

 o
n 

Co
m

m
on

 
Ar

ea
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S:

 
•

53
67

-C
 is

 o
ne

 o
f t

hr
ee

 m
an

or
s.

•
Re

m
ov

e 
or

ig
in

al
 8

’x
8’

 p
at

io
 w

al
l a

nd
 sl

ab
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 p

av
er

s
6’

x1
2’

 a
nd

 1
1’

-9
” 

x 
8’

 o
n 

Co
m

m
on

 A
re

a
•

Re
m

ov
e 

w
in

do
w

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 sl
id

in
g 

gl
as

s d
oo

r i
n 

or
ig

in
al

o p
en

in
g

•
EU

RL
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r u
se

 o
f C

om
m

on
 A

re
a

St
af

f R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n:

 A
pp

ro
ve

 
(*

) T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
at

ta
ch

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 fo

r y
ou

r r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 re
fe

re
nc

e.
 

1.
V a

ria
nc

e 
Re

qu
es

t F
or

m
2.

Ph
ot

os
3.

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

4.
Pl

an
(s

)
5.

Dr
af

t C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l
6.

Dr
af

t R
es

ol
ut

io
n

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

9 
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 1



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



Manor 5367-C



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 1 of 19

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Rectangle

RUDGED
Text Box
Replace window with sliding glass door and paver patio on common area

RUDGED
Rectangle

MONROYJ
Text Box

MONROYJ
Text Box

MONROYJ
Text Box

MONROYJ
Text Box

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 1Application Form



5367-C Tract 7887 Lot 3 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 2 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS



5367-C Existing Exclusive Use Common Area 8’-0” x 8’-0” Patio

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 3 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS



5367-C Proposed New Sliding Glass Door and Pavers

A

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 4 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS



5367-C Proposed New 6’-0” x 6’-8” Sliding Glass Door and 
Pavers 12’-0”x6’-0” and 11’-9”x8’-0”

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 5 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS



5367-C 

 

5367-B 

5367-A 

5366-A 

5366-B 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 6 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3 AERIAL & LOCATION MAP



 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 7 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3 AERIAL & LOCATION MAP



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 8 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 9 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 10 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 11 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 12 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



Agenda Item #9a 
Page 13 of 19

RUDGED
Text Box
Attachment 4 Site Plans, Floor Plans



 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

Manor:   5367-C 

 

Variance Description: Replace Window with Sliding Glass Door and Paver 

Patio on Common Area 

 

A Variance for Alterations has been granted at the above manor, subject to the attached 
plans stamped approved and is subject to a final inspection by the Division.  Any 
variations to the approved attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop work 
notice and/or disciplinary action taken against the Member. 
 
 
Manor-Specific Conditions: 

 

A. General Comments: 
 

A.1. Due to this approval involving the use of Common Area, the member shall 
provide to Manor Alterations a copy of the Grant Deed and Legal Description 
for the unit, prior to application for Mutual Consent for Demolition and 
Alteration, for use in preparation of the “Recordable Exclusive Use of Common 
Area Revocable License” as mentioned in Section G General Conditions. 
 

A.2. This approval does not change the number of bedrooms or the original 
maximum occupants permitted in the Unit. 

 
A.3. The Member shall provide plans, specifications, and calculations from a duly 

licensed architect to conform to the Building Codes for the work of this variance.  
 

A.4. A City of Laguna Woods Building Permit will be required and provided to Manor 
Alterations to verify all code requirements. 

 
B. Materials and Methods: 

 
 

B.1. Pavers installation must be set per Standard 21 Patio Slabs, Walkways, and 
Pavers. 

 
C. Requirements for Mutual Consent for Alterations: 

C.1. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of 
unit specific plans, specifications and calculations prepared by a licensed 
architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed improvement must be 
submitted to the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 14 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5DRAFT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 



 

 

Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural 
modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained 
upon completion of the proposed improvement. 

 
 
D. Requirements for Final Inspection by Manor Alterations: 

 
D.1. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, a scanned copy of the City-

Approved and Stamped plan set shall be submitted to the Division office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. The plans must 
depict the work as completed and approved by the City, including all structural 
and architectural modifications. 
 

D.2. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, all altered exterior surfaces 
should match the Building texture and color; the approved colors and materials 
are available at Resident Services, located at the Community Center first floor. 

 

 
General Conditions: 

 

G. General Conditions 
 

G.1. No improvement shall be installed, constructed, modified or altered at 5367-
CEnter Manor Address., (“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
(“Mutual”) without an approved Mutual Consent for Alterations application for 

the improvement has been made to, and approved, in writing, by, the Village 
Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), Alterations Division (“Division”), or, 

in the event of a Variance from the Mutual’s Alteration Standards, the 

Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In the event written 

permission is given for the installation, construction, modification or alteration 
of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member or Members 
(“Member”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any 

specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, 
modification or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the 
approval. 
 

G.2. Member hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Maintenance 
and Construction Department , and their representatives, a right of entry upon 
the Property, with reasonable notice, to inspect the  permitted improvements, 
and for their representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the 
Property, including, but not limited to, unauthorized disturbance of regulated 
materials, removing trash from common areas, removing any improvement 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 15 of 19



 

 

installed without approval or modifying an improvement to bring the same into 
compliance with the terms of the approval. Any remedial work performed on 
behalf of the manor owner as a result of violations to Mutual policy and/or 
regulatory violations will be processed as a chargeable service. 

 
G.3. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the 

improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 

Member at 5367-C and all future Mutual Members at 5367-C.  
 

G.4. Member shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, 
material suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who 
perform work on the Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing 

Documents, including, but not limited to, traffic and parking violations, 
maintenance of a clean job site at all times, damage to Mutual property, and 
use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior 
approval.  Member acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her 
invitees.  Member shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the 
Mutual’s Rules and Regulations. 

 
G.5. Member shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents 

by any invitee, including any fine, assessment or other charge levied in 
connection therewith. 

 
G.6. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process 

(http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/residents/resident-services and click on 
documents and Business Pass Application Instructions) in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

 
G.7. Member’s contractors and other invitees shall have business signage on 

vehicles and travel to and from the job site by the most direct route available 
and are not authorized to use Mutual recreational facilities or other amenities 
while they are in the Village for performance of work in connection with the 
Property. 

 
G.8. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered 

resident parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes.  
Contractors or other invitees must park on the street.  To the extent possible 
contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be limited in number. 

 
G.9. Must obtain an approved Mutual Consent application within 180 days or 6 

months of the variance approval before it is expired. 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 16 of 19



 

 

 

G.10. Member(s) of the Property must sign and submit to the Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., 
at the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, 
an executed and notarized “Recordable Common Area Exclusive Use 
Revocable License” for a proposed improvement that would utilize any portion 
of the Mutual’s Common Area. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 

Manor Alterations, that “Recordable Exclusive Use of Common Area 

Revocable License” must be filed with the Orange County Clerk/Recorder. 
 

 
G.11. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required, which may include the 

requirement to obtain clearance from the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District (Asbestos Hot Line at (909) 396-2336).  Prior to the issuance of a City 
of Laguna Woods permit an applicant must present the approprite Mutual 
Consent issued by Manor Alterations to the City. Please complete this step 
with Manor Alterations prior to submitting an application to the City. Once the 
City issues a Building Permit, you must submit a copy of the permit with the 
permit number to Manor Alterations. The City permit must be finalized within 
the prescribed timeframe, and a copy of the final permit must be submitted to 
the Division within two weeks. 

 
G.12. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of unit 

specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting 
the proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building 
is maintained upon completion of the proposed improvement. 

 
G.13. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State 

Building Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards, 
Policies and Guidelines. See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

 
G.14. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise 

Ordinance set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be 
adhered to at all times. 

 
G.15. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Alterations and the City 

Building Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location 
approved by the Division. 

 
G.16. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 17 of 19

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


 

 

dumped in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the 
construction must be disposed of offsite by the contractor.   

 
G.17. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security 

Staff by calling 949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for 
Temporary Containers. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of 
Laguna Woods waste hauler and must be maintained at all times. 

 
G.18. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste 

hauler and must be maintained at all times. 
 

G.19. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by 
Security Staff by calling 949-580-1400. 

 
G.20. The Mutual Consent for Alterations expires six months after the date of Notice 

of Approval issued by Manor Alterations, unless an application is submitted 
with fees and approved by the Division for an extension.  Only one extension 
for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted. 

 
G.21. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents 

(See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, unpaid 
assessments, work outside the approved plans, excessive noise, illegal 
dumping, or working after hours, will result in disciplinary action, which could 
result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or severe fines to the  
Member.  Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a portion or all of the 
Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy. 

 
G.22. Member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third Laguna Hills Mutual 

and its officers, directors, committee Members and agents from and against 
any and all claims, demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any 
other costs, expenses, amounts and liabilities arising from Member’s 

improvements and installation, construction, design and maintenance of same. 
 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 18 of 19

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


 
 

RESOLUTION 03-24-XX 

Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Member located at 5367-C Algarrobo, a La Princesa style manor, requests 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee approval of a variance to replace window with 
sliding glass door and paver patio on Common Area; and 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Members of affected units notifying 
them that an application to make an alteration to a neighboring unit had been made and that 
comments or objections could be made in writing to the Architectural Control and Standards 
Committee or in person at the Architectural Control and Standards Committee Meeting on July 
8, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee reviewed the variance and 
moved for approval of the variance to replace window with sliding glass door and paver patio on 
Common Area; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on July 16, 2024, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board 
hereby approves the request to replace window with sliding glass door and paver patio on 
Common Area; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal 
of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member at 5367-
C Algarrobo and all future Mutual Members at 5367-C Algarrobo; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

Agenda Item #9a 
Page 19 of 19

MONROYJ
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 6DRAFT RESOLUTION



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: July 8, 2024 
FOR:  Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
SUBJECT: Revision to Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Third Architectural Control and Standards Committee (ACSC) 
endorse the revised Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts.  

BACKGROUND 
The ACSC initiated a review of the current Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts (Attachment 
1) and proposed revisions to the Standard intended to bring it up to current industry standards
and improved designs. Standard 18 was last enacted in December 2023, via Resolution 03-23-
144 (Attachment 2).

DISCUSSION 
The suggested modifications to this standard are recommended in order to update design and 
installation guidelines which will allow for better functionality, maintenance improvements and 
proper building / site drainage. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
There is no financial impact to the mutual for the recommended action. 

Prepared By: Alan Grimshaw, Manor Alterations Manager 

Reviewed By: Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director 
Gavin Fogg, Manor Alterations Supervisor  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Current Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts  
Attachment 2 – Current Resolution 03-23-144 
Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts 
Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts 
Attachment 5 – Proposed Resolution 03-24-XX 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 1 of 11



STANDARD 18: GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS 
OCTOBER 1981 

REVISED APRIL 1996 RESOLUTION M3-96-28 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 
REVISED JUNE 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-91 
REVISED DECEMBER 2023, RESOLUTION 03-23-144 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SEE STANDARD 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1 All gutters shall have a slope of no less than 1/8-inch per foot along their 
entire run length unless approved by Manor Alterations. 

2.2 Downspouts shall be installed at intervals appropriate for its installation in 
compliance with The Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors’ National 
Association (SMACNA). No downspout may be installed that will drain into 
an area that will effect surface drainage in an adverse way. 

2.3 Installations to roof systems where hangers penetrate or may harm the 
roofing material in any way are prohibited. 

2.4 All gutters are to be 6-inches wide as measured across the top. Gutters are 
to be made of aluminum with a minimum gauge of .027. Vinyl coated 
aluminum is permitted. Copper and steel gutters or downspouts are not 
permitted.  

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 2 of 11



2.5 All downspouts to be sized appropriately for the area that is being drained 
and must match the color of existing guttering.  

2.6 Termination of a downspout shall not allow water flowing out of a downspout 
to flow back towards the building. A combination of downspout and splash 
blocks may be used to achieve positive drainage away from building.  

2.7 Downspouts that terminate directly into a drain inlet must provide a 1-inch air 
gap at point of transition.  

2.8 Gutters and leaf guards are required in order to assist in substantially 
reducing maintenance costs; prevent pest infestations and breeding sites; 
provide fire protection from flying embers; and prevent obstructions.  

2.9 Gutters and downspouts will be of the same color to match the surface they 
are attached to. 

2.10 Alteration aluminum gutters and downspouts are not to be connected to 
original steel gutters and downspouts. If the alteration gutter system 
must be connected to an original steel gutter system, the Member is 
responsible for replacing the original steel gutter system with new 
aluminum that matches the original style and color. 

2.11 Gutters attached to the Mutual owned fascia are required to be attached 
using hidden hangers and be spaced at a minimum of 30-inches. 
Smooth striated and spiral spikes are prohibited.  

2.12 All penetrations must be properly sealed, Exposed wood must be 
primed and painted to match the existing paint of the building. Member 
will be responsible for all damages to roof or fascia. 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 3 of 11



 RESOLUTION 03-23-144  

STANDARD 18: GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee recognizes the 
need to amend Standards and create new Standards as necessary; and  

WHEREAS, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee recognizes the 
need to revise Standard 18: Gutters and Downspouts;   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, December 19, 2023, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts Standard 18: Gutters  
and Downspouts as attached to the official meeting minutes; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-18-91 adopted June 19, 2018, is 
hereby superseded in its entirety and no longer in effect; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this  
resolution as written. 

Attachment 2

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 4 of 11



STANDARD 18: GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS 

OCTOBER 1981 
REVISED APRIL 1996 RESOLUTION M3-96-28 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 

REVISED JUNE 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-91 
REVISED DECEMBER 2023, RESOLUTION 03-23-144 
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-24-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard 1: General Requirements EE STANDARD 1: GENERAL 
REQUIREMENTS 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

2.1 Seamless gutters: A seamless gutter is a single piece of gutter formed on the 
jobsite to match the exact measurement of a particular job.  Seamless gutters 
can be run in lengths up to 100 feet. 

2.2 Hidden gutter hangers: A hidden gutter hanger is designed to clip under the 
gutter hem and screwed to the facia board from inside the gutter. 

2.3 Spike and ferrule hangers: A spike is a long nail that penetrates the front of a 
gutter and is directed to the back of the gutter through a ferrule or tube. 

2.4 Fascia: A finished wooden board or other flat piece of material such that 
covers the end of the roof rafters. 

2.5 Splash block: A device manufactured from concrete of plastic that works to 
channel water away from the building foundation, positioned directly under a 
downspout. 

2.03.0 APPLICATIONS 

3.1 All gutter installations are to be seamless. 

2.13.2 All gutters shall have a slope of no less than 1/8-inch per foot along their 
entire run length but no more than ½-inch in 40 lineal feet. Gutters and 

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 5 of 11



downspouts shall be installed so that water does not pool at any point.  
unless approved by Manor Alterations. 

3.3 Downspouts shall be installed at intervals appropriate for its installation in 
compliance with The Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors’ National 
Association (SMACNA).  

A. In no case shall downspout spacing exceed 40 lineal feet.

2.2B. No downspout may be installed that will drain into an area that will 
effect surface drainage in an adverse way. 

2.33.4 All gutter Iinstallations that penetrate the to roof systems where hangers 
penetrate or may harm the roofing material in any way are prohibited. 

2.43.5 All gutters are to be 6-inches wide as measured across the top. Gutters are 
to be made of aluminum with a minimum gauge of .027. Vinyl coated 
aluminum is permitted. Copper and steel gutters or downspouts are not 
permitted.  

A. Exception: In patio cover installations where a ‘rafter bracket’ is used, gutter
width can be modified to 5 inches to accommodate ‘rafter bracket’.  See 
Standard 22: Patio & Balcony Covers Aluminum and Vinyl. 

2.53.6 All downspouts to be sized appropriately for the area that is being drained 
and must match the color of existing guttering. 

2.63.7 Termination of a downspout shall not allow water flowing out of a downspout 
to flow back towards the building. A combination of downspout and splash 
blocks may be used to achieve positive drainage away from building.  

2.73.8 Downspouts that terminate directly into a drain inlet must provide a 1-inch air 
gap at point of transition. 

2.83.9 Gutters and leaf guards are required in order to assist in substantially 
reducing maintenance costs; prevent pest infestations and breeding sites; 
provide fire protection from flying embers; and prevent obstructions.  

2.93.10 Gutters and downspouts will be of the same color to match the surface 

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 6 of 11



they are attached to. 

2.103.11 Alteration aluminum gutters and downspouts are not to be 
connected to original steel gutters and downspouts. If the alteration 
gutter system must be connected to an original steel gutter system, the 
mMember is responsible for replacing the original steel gutter system 
with new aluminum that matches the original style and color. 

2.113.12 Gutters attached to the mMutual owned fascia are required to be 
attached using hidden gutter hangers and be spaced at a minimum of 
30-inches. Spike and ferrule hangers Smooth striated and spiral spikes
are prohibited.

2.123.13 All penetrations must be properly sealed, eExposed wood must be 
primed and painted to match the existing paint of the building. Member 
will be responsible for all damages to roof or fascia. 

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 7 of 11



STANDARD 18: GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS 

OCTOBER 1981 
REVISED APRIL 1996 RESOLUTION M3-96-28 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 

REVISED JUNE 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-91 
REVISED DECEMBER 2023, RESOLUTION 03-23-144 
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-24-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard 1: General Requirements 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

2.1 Seamless gutters: A seamless gutter is a single piece of gutter formed on the 
jobsite to match the exact measurement of a particular job.  Seamless gutters 
can be run in lengths up to 100 feet. 

2.2 Hidden gutter hangers: A hidden gutter hanger is designed to clip under the 
gutter hem and screwed to the facia board from inside the gutter. 

2.3 Spike and ferrule hangers: A spike is a long nail that penetrates the front of a 
gutter and is directed to the back of the gutter through a ferrule or tube. 

2.4 Fascia: A finished wooden board or other flat piece of material such that 
covers the end of the roof rafters. 

2.5 Splash block: A device manufactured from concrete of plastic that works to 
channel water away from the building foundation, positioned directly under a 
downspout. 

3.0 APPLICATIONS 

3.1 All gutter installations are to be seamless. 

3.2 All gutters shall have a slope of no less than 1/8-inch per foot along their 
entire run length but no more than ½-inch in 40 lineal feet. Gutters and 
downspouts shall be installed so that water does not pool at any point.   

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 8 of 11



3.3 Downspouts shall be installed at intervals appropriate for its installation in 
compliance with The Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors’ National 
Association (SMACNA).  

A. In no case shall downspout spacing exceed 40 lineal feet.

B. No downspout may be installed that will drain into an area that will
effect surface drainage in an adverse way.

3.4 All gutter installations that penetrate the roof systems in any way are 
prohibited. 

3.5 All gutters are to be 6-inches wide as measured across the top. Gutters are 
to be made of aluminum with a minimum gauge of .027. Vinyl coated 
aluminum is permitted. Copper and steel gutters or downspouts are not 
permitted.  

A. Exception: In patio cover installations where a ‘rafter bracket’ is used,
gutter width can be modified to 5 inches to accommodate ‘rafter
bracket’.  See Standard 22: Patio & Balcony Covers Aluminum and
Vinyl.

3.6 All downspouts to be sized appropriately for the area that is being drained 
and must match the color of existing guttering.  

3.7 Termination of a downspout shall not allow water flowing out of a downspout 
to flow back towards the building. A combination of downspout and splash 
blocks may be used to achieve positive drainage away from building.  

3.8 Downspouts that terminate directly into a drain inlet must provide a 1-inch air 
gap at point of transition.  

3.9 Gutters and leaf guards are required in order to assist in substantially 
reducing maintenance costs; prevent pest infestations and breeding sites; 
provide fire protection from flying embers; and prevent obstructions.  

3.10 Gutters and downspouts will be of the same color to match the surface they 
are attached to. 

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 9 of 11



3.11 Alteration aluminum gutters and downspouts are not to be connected to 
original steel gutters and downspouts. If the alteration gutter system 
must be connected to an original steel gutter system, the member is 
responsible for replacing the original steel gutter system with new 
aluminum that matches the original style and color. 

3.12 Gutters attached to the mutual owned fascia are required to be attached 
using hidden gutter hangers and be spaced at a minimum of 30-inches. 
Spike and ferrule hangers are prohibited.  

3.13 All penetrations must be properly sealed, exposed wood must be 
primed and painted to match the existing paint of the building. Member 
will be responsible for all damages to roof or fascia. 

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 10 of 11



 RESOLUTION 03-24-XX  

REVISE STANDARD 18: GUTTERS & DOWNSPOUTS 

WHEREAS, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual recognizes the need to amend 
standards and create new standards as necessary; and  

WHEREAS, the Mutual recognized the need to revise Standard 18: Gutters and 
Downspouts;   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby adopts revisions and amendments to Standard 18: Gutters and 
Downspouts as attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-23-144 adopted December 19, 2023, is 
hereby superseded and canceled; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.   

JULY INITIAL NOTIFICATION: Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff 

recommends that a motion be made and seconded to accept the resolution and allow 

discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then 

recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board 

Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Attachment 5

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 11 of 11



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: July 8, 2024 
FOR:  Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
SUBJECT: Revision to Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Third Architectural Control and Standards Committee (ACSC) 
endorse the revised Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments.  

BACKGROUND 
The ACSC initiated a review of the current Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 
(Attachment 1) and proposed revisions to the Standard intended to bring it up to current 
industry standards and improved designs. Standard 34 was last enacted in January 2019, via 
Resolution 03-19-09 (Attachment 2).  

DISCUSSION 
The suggested modifications to this standard are recommended in order to develop a more 
consistent architectural standard throughout the community; clarify the design criteria; update 
energy efficiency requirements; update window egress requirements; and clarify maintenance 
responsibilities.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
There is no financial impact to the mutual for the recommended action. 

Prepared By: Alan Grimshaw, Manor Alterations Manager 

Reviewed By: Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director 
Gavin Fogg, Manor Alterations Supervisor  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Current Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 
Attachment 2 – Current Resolution 03-19-09 
Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 
Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 34: Windows & Window Attachments 
Attachment 5 – Proposed Resolution 03-24-XX 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 1 of 26



STANDARD 34: WINDOWS & WINDOW ATTACHMENTS 
MAY 1996, RESOLUTION M3-96-28 

SEPTEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-47 
NOVEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-62 
OCTOBER 2004, RESOLUTION 03-04-27 

REVISED FEBRUARY 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-10 
REVISED SEPTEMBER 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-41 

REVISED MAY 2007, RESOLUTION 03-07-47 
REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-51 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 
REVISED DECEMBER 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-215 

REVISED JANUARY 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-09 

1.0  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

2.0      APPLICATIONS 

2.1 New construction window replacement is permitted only upon the 
approval of the Alterations Division office. Retrofit windows are 
permitted upon the approval of the Alterations Division  office in 
accordance with the criteria established herein.  

2.2 Windows may be framed with either aluminum or vinyl. Wood framed 
windows, and the use of other materials, are subject to the review of 
the Board of Directors.   

2.3 Aluminum framed windows must match the original window frame 
color on the building with either a natural or bronzed anodized finish.   

2.4 All vinyl framed windows must be white in color. Colors other than 
white vinyl will be reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

2.5 Windows and sliding glass doors on the same wall of an individual 
manor will be replaced concurrently to ensure visual continuity in the 
building and surrounding area except when windows and/or sliding 
glass doors are obscured by patio walls or glass enclosures.  At any 
such time that the enclosure is removed, exposing the windows 
and/or sliding glass doors, the Member must replace the windows 
and/or sliding glass doors to conform to the Mutual Standard. 

2.6 Any existing retrofit windows in the building will set the precedent for 
trim size/dimensions to be utilized for new retrofit installations.  

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 2 of 26



2.7 The top of window heights shall be at 6'-8" unless a special height is 
called for on the standard plan drawing. 

2.8 Size and location of windows shall be as per standard plan drawings. 

2.9 All retrofit windows must be certified with the City of Laguna Woods. 
Any retrofit window that is not properly certified is subject to permit 
revocation and removal at the sole cost of the manor owner. 

2.10 Any retrofit of bedroom windows for a La Jolla-style manor must 
include a minimum of one (1) roll and turn style window or a 
casement window in order to meet building code egress regulations. 

3.0 INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS 

3.1 All windows are required to meet building code regulations. 

3.2 XOX windows may replace XO windows, and vice versa.  Fixed 
panels may replace sliding panels, and sliding panels may replace 
fixed panels.   

3.3 XO windows may be converted to picture windows, and vice versa, 
provided the height and width of the opening remain the same and 
egress is not compromised.  

3.4 Windows may be converted to sliding glass doors, and vice versa, 
provided that 1) the area faces into a patio, atrium, or balcony, and 2) 
the height and width of the opening remain the same.  

3.5 Where windows have a configuration of XO above an XO or OO in 
the same opening, the bottom section may be filled in using standard 
construction practices. The dimensions of the top section must 
remain the same.  

3.6 Casement windows are not permitted where the window, when open, 
would protrude into an area where maintenance of property, i.e., 
mowing, pruning, planting, would be impeded, or where the window 
would protrude into a walkway or area where pedestrians walk. 

3.7 Casement windows are permitted to be installed where egress 
windows in bedrooms are required due to the installation of a patio 
enclosure. 

3.8 Bathroom windows covered with an original or permitted grille may 
remain as is during the retrofit of other windows on the same 
elevation, provided the existing frame is painted to match the retrofit 
windows. 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 3 of 26



3.9 Bathroom windows may remain as is during the retrofit of other 
windows on the same elevation when retrofitting the subject window 
would reduce the glass size to less than one (1) foot in any direction.   

3.10 Retrofit louvered bathroom windows. Louvered bathroom windows 
may be retrofitted with other window options that fit the existing 
opening, a single fixed pane of glass, a double hung window, 
casement window, and glass blocks. Replacement windows must 
conform to Section 34 window standards. Plans and specifications 
must be submitted to the Permits Department for approval prior to 
installation. 

3.11 Recessed vinyl retrofitted kitchen windows. Flanges on recessed 
vinyl retrofit kitchen windows shall be cut to fit the size of the window 
it is replacing.  Metal frames around the window shall be painted to 
match the vinyl window frame, except for casement windows in 
three-story buildings. Paint must be appropriate for use on metal 
surfaces. 

3.12 The total width of the perimeter frame and sash for retrofit vinyl 
windows shall not exceed four inches. Unless the subject window is 
surrounded by original wood framing, all non-casement window 
flanges must extend beyond any open areas between the aluminum 
frame and all sides in order to adequately protect against water 
intrusion.  

3.13 With the exception of recessed windows, cutting of the flanges is not 
permitted.   

3.14 The retrofit window frame should be constructed in a flat plane 
without raised or sculptured parts. 

3.15 Windows must be properly insulated according to the manufacturer’s 
installation instructions.   

3.16 Retrofits of recessed windows must paint any exposed aluminum 
framing to match the color of the vinyl window. Garden Villa 
casement windows are an exception to this Standard. 

4.0 TYPE OF GLASS 

4.1 All glass to be clear, single light (no grids) with the following 
exception:  single story manors may install vinyl retrofit windows and 
doors with grids that match the design pattern and dimension of the 
grids for all windows and doors on the same elevation.  All glass shall 
be tempered as required on standard plan, except as outlined in 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 4 of 26



Section 6.0. Thermopane-type glass is required. Replacement 
window will correspond with Section 2.0. 

4.2 Stained or leaded-type glass per Section 6.0. 

4.3 Reflective tints or films applied to glass after manufacture may be 
applied providing it does not have a reflectivity factor of more than 
15%. Documentation of such material must be on hand and 
approved by the Alterations Division office before such application. 

4.4 All bathroom windows will be of opaque glass. 

5.0 ATTACHMENTS 

5.1 No window awnings permitted. 

5.2 No storm windows or glass shields will be installed on the exterior of 
any window. 

6.0 STAINED GLASS 

6.1 Any application for stained, leaded, etc., types of glass must be 
submitted to the Permits and Inspections office for approval of 
design, color, and sizes. 

6.2 All non-standard designs will be reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

7.0 WROUGHT IRON GRILLES 

7.1 All wrought iron grilles will be painted in accordance with the Mutual 
Paint Policy and approved color palette. 

7.2 All grilles shall be decorative in nature and design. They will match 
other wrought iron, i.e., gates and fences where present. 

7.3 Grilles shall not be placed on sliding glass doors or any other part of 
the unit except windows. 

7.4 Grilles may be placed on only the first floor of any building except on 
those buildings where windows face into a breezeway and do not 
open directly into a walkway as determined by the Alterations 
Division office. 

7.5 Maximum overhang of grilles shall be limited to 6" in any direction 
beyond window dimensions. No grille shall protrude more than 6" 
from the window. 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 5 of 26



7.6 Quick emergency release pins are required for fire purposes. 
Release pins shall be U.L. or U.B.C. approved and a smoke detector 
shall be utilized within the room where the grilles are installed. 

8.0 GARDEN WINDOWS 

8.1 Garden windows may be defined as planter windows, greenhouse, 
protruding windows, or bay windows. 

8.2 No garden window shall extend outward from the building beyond 
24". The largest horizontal or vertical dimensions of a garden window 
shall not exceed 8'-0" x 6'-0". 

8.3 Garden windows shall be permitted only in dining rooms, nooks, and 
kitchens. Exception: any room where a window will face into a walled 
patio area. 

8.4 No garden window shall be permitted where it may conceivably 
obstruct normal pedestrian traffic even within a walled patio area. 

8.5 No garden window shall be permitted above the first floor of any 
building except on buildings where the window faces into the 
breezeway area. 

8.6 A window in which an existing fire-rated assembly has been included 
into the building to satisfy building code requirements shall not be 
removed and replaced by a garden window, except where a garden 
window is a similarly fire-rated unit. 

8.7 Garden window frame will meet Staff approval and this Standard. 

9.0 SLIDING GLASS DOORS 

9.1 In order to maintain visual consistency, sliding glass doors are 
subject to the Standards set forth in Section 2.0.  

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 6 of 26



2 

Minimum net clear openil1g dimensions (Figures 3 and 4)
/\ Minimum openingarea-5.7 square feet S,O J.for .fii'Jtf oof'. 

Minimum opening width -20 inches 
Minimum open�rlg height-24 inches 

The following combinations of width and height will provide a net 
dear opening of 5.7 square feet (820.8 square inches): 

width height 'Width 'height 
(in.) (in.) (in.) (in.) 

20 X 41 27.5 X 29.8 
20.5 X 40 28' X 29.3 
21 X 39.l 28.6 X 28.8 
21.5 X 38.2 29 X 28.3 
22 X 37.3 29.5 X 27.8 
22.5 X 36.5 30 X 27.4 
23 X 35.7 30.5 X 26.9 
235 X 34.9 31 X 26.5 
24 X 34.2 31.5 X 26.1 
24.5 X 33.5 32 X 25.7 
25 X 32.8 32.5 X 25.3 
25.5 X 32.2 33 X 24.9 
26 X 31.6 33.5 X 24.5 
26.5 X 31 34 X 24.1 
27 X 30.4 34.5 X 24 

Maximum sill height above floor (Figures 3 to 5) 
Maximum sill height-44 inches 

/ / 

t t 
5.7 SQ FT" 

34¼1N � 

DOUBLE-OR 
SINGLE-HUNG 
WINDOW 

FJNJSH /ci.ooR 

� 

SLIDING 
WINDOW 

FINISH FLOOR 

:=e 
:, 
5.7 SQ F 

20\N 

CASEMENT 
WINDOW 

/ 

5.7SQFT � 

29 5/1a iN 

' 

' 

" 
w 

Emergency Escape and Rescue Openings 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 7 of 26



Attachment 2

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 8 of 26



STANDARD 34: WINDOWS & WINDOW
ATTACHMENTS

MAY 1996, RESOLUTION M3-96-28
SEPTEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-47
NOVEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-62
OCTOBER 2004, RESOLUTION 03-04-27

REVISED FEBRUARY 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-10
REVISED SEPTEMBER 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-41

REVISED MAY 2007, RESOLUTION 03-07-47
REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-51

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49
REVISED DECEMBER 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-215

REVISED JANUARY 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-09
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-24-XX

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements EE STANDARD 1: GENERAL
REQUIREMENTS

2.0 DEFINITIONS

2.1 New Construction Window – A window, where both window frame and
window are installed at a new location.

2.2 Retrofit Window – A new window and frame is installed in an existing framed
window opening.

2.3 Egress Window – An existing or new replacement window that is properly
sized to meet current building code emergency exiting requirements.  See
Detail Section 10.0

2.4 Window Operation XO –
X: Designates operable glass portion of a window
O: Designates fixed glass portion of a window

2.5 Window Types – See Detail Section 9.0

2.6 Vinyl Window – Window framing and surrounding components are made of
vinyl with the primary ingredient being PVC (Poly-Vinyl Chloride)

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 9 of 26



2.7 Composite Windows – Window framing and surrounding component are
made with several different materials combined together to form a strong
singular composite material.

3.0 MATERIALS & FINISHES

3.1 New construction or retrofit windows shall be vinyl, composite or aluminum
type  windows.  Other materials are subject to review by the ACSC
(Architectural Control and Standards Committee)

3.2 Finish colors to be white or black.  Other colors are subject to review and
approval by  the ACSC.

A. All windows / frames along any one given elevation are to match in
color.

4.0 DESIGN CRITERIA

4.1 XOX windows may replace XO windows and vice versa, (i.e. fixed panels may
replace sliding panels and sliding panels may replace fixed panels).

4.2 XO windows may be converted to a picture window and vice versa.

A. The height and width of the opening must remain the same

B. Egress requirements cannot be compromised.

4.3 Where window styles have an XO above an XO or OO window below, the
window section below may be filled in to match existing interior and exterior
finishes.

A. The dimensions of the top window section must remain the same.

4.4 All windows and sliding glass doors along any one elevation or wall to be
replaced with matching styles and at the same time to ensure architectural
integrity along said elevation or wall.

4.5 Exterior window trim or flange shall not exceed 4” in width and be on a flat 
plane with the wall surface.

4.6 Window Accessories / Attachments that are not allowed:

A. Awnings

B. Storm Windows/ Glass Shields

C. Exterior Shutters

D. Wrought Iron Grilles

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 10 of 26



E. Planter Boxes

5.0 GLAZING

5.1 Title 24 / Energy efficient requirements – Subject to current building codes:

A. Tempered

B. Dual glazing

C. Meet low-e2 standards (thin coating minimizing the amount of infrared
and ultraviolet light that comes through glass)

D. U factor of 0.30 (rates how fast heat is gained or lost through a
window)

E. Energy Star – recommended

5.2 Stained glass window design, specifications and locations are subject to
review and approval by the ACSC.

5.3 Reflective tints or films applied to glass after manufacture is permitted
provided the reflectivity factor does not exceed 15%.  Verification
documentation required at Mutual Consent Application.

6.0 GARDEN WINDOWS

6.1 Included in this classification: Greenhouse window, planter window, bay
window.

6.2 All garden type windows may be subject to review and approval by the ACSC.

6.3 A garden type window shall not extend farther out from the face of the building
by more than 24 inches.

A. Maximum horizontal dimension 8 feet

B. Maximum vertical dimension 6 feet.

6.4 A garden type window shall be permitted in the following areas:

A. Kitchen

B. Breakfast nook

C. Dining room

D. A window location that projects into an enclosed patio area.

6.5 A garden type window is not allowed in the following conditions:

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 11 of 26



A. Where projection impedes a pedestrian walkway

B. Above the first floor UNLESS it would project into an existing
breezeway.

6.6 A garden type window must not compromise the fire rating of the wall that it is
installed in.

2.07.0 APPLICATIONS

7.1 New construction window replacement is permitted only upon the approval of
the Alterations Division office. Retrofit windows are permitted upon the
approval of the Alterations Division office in accordance with the criteria
established herein.All windows are to comply with current building codes.

7.2 A scaled floorplan showing all new or retrofit locations is required.

A. All retrofit bedroom window installations must meet minimum egress
requirements. See Section 10

7.3 Top of window heights shall be at 6’-8” (6 feet 8 inches).  Any variation is 
subject to review and approval by the ACSC.

7.4 Size of retrofit windows to be as large as possible with in an existing
opening.

A. All new or retrofit windows in a bedroom shall comply with minimum
egress requirements as dictated by current building codes.  See
Section 10.0 reference.

7.5 Casement windows are not permitted where:

A. The opening swings into an area where regular building / landscaping
maintenance is required.

B. The opening swings into a pedestrian walkway.

2.1

2.2 Windows may be framed with either aluminum or vinyl. Wood framed
windows, and the use of other materials, are subject to the review of the
Board of Directors.

2.3 Aluminum framed windows must match the original window frame color on
the building with either a natural or bronzed anodized finish.

2.4 All vinyl framed windows must be white in color. Colors other than white vinyl
will be reviewed by the Board of Directors.

2.5 Windows and sliding glass doors on the same wall of an individual manor will
be replaced concurrently to ensure visual continuity in the building and
surrounding area except when windows and/or sliding glass doors are

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 12 of 26



obscured by patio walls or glass enclosures. At any such time that the
enclosure is removed, exposing the windows and/or sliding glass doors, the
Member must replace the windows and/or sliding glass doors to conform to
the Mutual Standard.

2.6 Any existing retrofit windows in the building will set the precedent for trim
size/dimensions to be utilized for new retrofit installations.

2.7 The top of window heights shall be at 6'-8" unless a special height is called
for on the standard plan drawing.

2.8 Size and location of windows shall be as per standard plan drawings

2.9 All retrofit windows must be certified with the City of Laguna Woods. Any
retrofit window that is not properly certified is subject to permit revocation
and removal at the sole cost of the manor owner.

2.10 Any retrofit of bedroom windows for a La Jolla-style manor must include
a minimum of one (1) roll and turn style window or a casement window
in order to meet building code egress regulations.

3.08.0 MAINTENANCE INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

8.1 All windows are required to meet building code regulations.Member is
responsible for all upkeep and maintenance of all new or replacement
windows.

8.2  If new or replacement windows fall into a state of disrepair, the mutual
at its discretion  may make any necessary repairs and charge the
member for such repairs.

3.1

3.2 XOX windows may replace XO windows, and vice versa. Fixed panels
may replace sliding panels, and sliding panels may replace fixed panels.

3.3 XO windows may be converted to picture windows, and vice versa,
provided the height and width of the opening remain the same and
egress is not compromised.

3.4 Windows may be converted to sliding glass doors, and vice versa,
provided that 1) the area faces into a patio, atrium, or balcony, and 2)
the height and width of the opening remain the same.

3.5 Where windows have a configuration of XO above an XO or OO in the
same opening, the bottom section may be filled in using standard
construction practices. The dimensions of the top section must remain
the same.

3.6 Casement windows are not permitted where the window, when open,
would protrude into an area where maintenance of property, i.e.,
mowing, pruning, planting, would be impeded, or where the window
would protrude into a walkway or area where pedestrians walk.

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 13 of 26



3.7 Casement windows are permitted to be installed where egress windows
in bedrooms are required due to the installation of a patio enclosure.

3.8 Bathroom windows covered with an original or permitted grille may
remain as is during the retrofit of other windows on the same elevation,
provided the existing frame is painted to match the retrofit windows.

3.9 Bathroom windows may remain as is during the retrofit of other windows
on the same elevation when retrofitting the subject window would
reduce the glass size to less than one (1) foot in any direction.

3.10 Retrofit louvered bathroom windows. Louvered bathroom windows may
be retrofitted with other window options that fit the existing opening, a
single fixed pane of glass, a double hung window, casement window,
and glass blocks. Replacement windows must conform to Section 34
window standards. Plans and specifications must be submitted to the
Permits Department for approval prior to installation.

3.11 Recessed vinyl retrofitted kitchen windows. Flanges on recessed vinyl
retrofit kitchen windows shall be cut to fit the size of the window it is
replacing. Metal frames around the window shall be painted to match
the vinyl window frame, except for casement windows in three-story
buildings. Paint must be appropriate for use on metal surfaces.

3.12 The total width of the perimeter frame and sash for retrofit vinyl windows
shall not exceed four inches. Unless the subject window is surrounded
by original wood framing, all non-casement window flanges must extend
beyond any open areas between the aluminum frame and all sides in
order to adequately protect against water intrusion.

3.13 With the exception of recessed windows, cutting of the flanges is not
permitted.

3.14 The retrofit window frame should be constructed in a flat plane without
raised or sculptured parts.

3.15 Windows must be properly insulated according to the manufacturer’s 
installation instructions.

3.16 Retrofits of recessed windows must paint any exposed aluminum
framing to match the color of the vinyl window. Garden Villa casement
windows are an exception to this Standard.

9.0 WINDOW STYLES (see attached) TYPE OF GLASS

10.0 EGRESS WINDOW GUIDELINES (see attached)

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 14 of 26



SECTION 10.0 EGRESS WINDOW GUIDELINES

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 15 of 26



Egress Windows are required in all sleeping rooms.

Egress Window Size and Dimensions: 
1. Minimum 5.7 square feet of net

clear opening area. 
2. Minimum 24 inches of net clear

height opening. 
3. Minimum 20 inches of net clear

width opening. 

NOTE: THESE REMAIN SUBJECT TO CURRENT 
BUILDING CODES. 

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 16 of 26



4.0

4.1 All glass to be clear, single light (no grids) with the following exception:
single story manors may install vinyl retrofit windows and doors with
grids that match the design pattern and dimension of the grids for all
windows and doors on the same elevation. All glass shall be tempered
as required on standard plan, except as outlined in Section 6.0.
Thermopane-type glass is required. Replacement window will
correspond with Section 2.0.

4.2 Stained or leaded-type glass per Section 6.0.

4.3 Reflective tints or films applied to glass after manufacture may be
applied providing it does not have a reflectivity factor of more than 15%.
Documentation of such material must be on hand and approved by the
Alterations Division office before such application.

4.4 All bathroom windows will be of opaque glass.

5.0 ATTACHMENTS

5.1 No window awnings permitted.

5.2 No storm windows or glass shields will be installed on the exterior of any
window

6.0 STAINED GLASS

6.1 Any application for stained, leaded, etc., types of glass must be
submitted to the Permits and Inspections office for approval of design,
color, and sizes.

6.2 All non-standard designs will be reviewed by the Board of Directors.

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 17 of 26



7.0 WROUGHT IRON GRILLES

7.1 All wrought iron grilles will be painted in accordance with the Mutual
Paint Policy and approved color palette.

7.2 All grilles shall be decorative in nature and design. They will match other
wrought iron, i.e., gates and fences where present.

7.3 Grilles shall not be placed on sliding glass doors or any other part of the
unit except windows.

7.4 Grilles may be placed on only the first floor of any building except on
those buildings where windows face into a breezeway and do not open
directly into a walkway as determined by the Alterations Division office.

7.5 Maximum overhang of grilles shall be limited to 6" in any direction
beyond window dimensions. No grille shall protrude more than 6" from
the window.

7.6 Quick emergency release pins are required for fire purposes. Release
pins shall be U.L. or U.B.C. approved and a smoke detector shall be
utilized within the room where the grilles are installed.

8.0 GARDEN WINDOWS

8.1 Garden windows may be defined as planter windows, greenhouse,
protruding windows, or bay windows.

8.2 No garden window shall extend outward from the building beyond 24".
The largest horizontal or vertical dimensions of a garden window shall
not exceed 8'-0" x 6'-0".

8.3 Garden windows shall be permitted only in dining rooms, nooks, and
kitchens. Exception: any room where a window will face into a walled
patio area.

8.4 No garden window shall be permitted where it may conceivably obstruct
normal pedestrian traffic even within a walled patio area.

8.5 No garden window shall be permitted above the first floor of any building
except on buildings where the window faces into the breezeway area.

8.6 A window in which an existing fire-rated assembly has been included
into the building to satisfy building code requirements shall not be
removed and replaced by a garden window, except where a garden
window is a similarly fire-rated unit.

8.7 Garden window frame will meet Staff approval and this Standard.

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 18 of 26



9.0 SLIDING GLASS DOORS

9.1 In order to maintain visual consistency, sliding glass doors are subject to
the Standards set forth in Section 2.0.

Attachment 3

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 19 of 26



STANDARD 34: WINDOWS & WINDOW
ATTACHMENTS

MAY 1996, RESOLUTION M3-96-28
SEPTEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-47
NOVEMBER 2002, RESOLUTION M3-02-62
OCTOBER 2004, RESOLUTION 03-04-27

REVISED FEBRUARY 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-10
REVISED SEPTEMBER 2006, RESOLUTION 03-06-41

REVISED MAY 2007, RESOLUTION 03-07-47
REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-51

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49
REVISED DECEMBER 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-215

REVISED JANUARY 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-09
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-24-XX

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements

2.0 DEFINITIONS

2.1 New Construction Window – A window, where both window frame and
window are installed at a new location.

2.2 Retrofit Window – A new window and frame is installed in an existing framed
window opening.

2.3 Egress Window – An existing or new replacement window that is properly
sized to meet current building code emergency exiting requirements.  See
Detail Section 10.0

2.4 Window Operation XO –
X: Designates operable glass portion of a window
O: Designates fixed glass portion of a window

2.5 Window Types – See Detail Section 9.0

2.6 Vinyl Window – Window framing and surrounding components are made of
vinyl with the primary ingredient being PVC (Poly-Vinyl Chloride)

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 20 of 26



2.7 Composite Windows – Window framing and surrounding component are
made with several different materials combined together to form a strong
singular composite material.

3.0 MATERIALS & FINISHES

3.1 New construction or retrofit windows shall be vinyl, composite or aluminum
type  windows.  Other materials are subject to review by the ACSC
(Architectural Control and Standards Committee)

3.2 Finish colors to be white or black.  Other colors are subject to review and
approval by  the ACSC.

A. All windows / frames along any one given elevation are to match in
color.

4.0 DESIGN CRITERIA

4.1 XOX windows may replace XO windows and vice versa, (i.e. fixed panels may
replace sliding panels and sliding panels may replace fixed panels).

4.2 XO windows may be converted to a picture window and vice versa.

A. The height and width of the opening must remain the same

B. Egress requirements cannot be compromised.

4.3 Where window styles have an XO above an XO or OO window below, the
window section below may be filled in to match existing interior and exterior
finishes.

A. The dimensions of the top window section must remain the same.

4.4 All windows and sliding glass doors along any one elevation or wall to be
replaced with matching styles and at the same time to ensure architectural
integrity along said elevation or wall.

4.5 Exterior window trim or flange shall not exceed 4” in width and be on a flat 
plane with the wall surface.

4.6 Window Accessories / Attachments that are not allowed:

A. Awnings

B. Storm Windows/ Glass Shields

C. Exterior Shutters

D. Wrought Iron Grilles

E. Planter Boxes

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 21 of 26



5.0 GLAZING

5.1 Title 24 / Energy efficient requirements – Subject to current building codes:

A. Tempered

B. Dual glazing

C. Meet low-e2 standards (thin coating minimizing the amount of infrared
and ultraviolet light that comes through glass)

D. U factor of 0.30 (rates how fast heat is gained or lost through a
window)

E. Energy Star – recommended

5.2 Stained glass window design, specifications and locations are subject to
review and approval by the ACSC.

5.3 Reflective tints or films applied to glass after manufacture is permitted
provided the reflectivity factor does not exceed 15%.  Verification
documentation required at Mutual Consent Application.

6.0 GARDEN WINDOWS

6.1 Included in this classification: Greenhouse window, planter window, bay
window.

6.2 All garden type windows may be subject to review and approval by the ACSC.

6.3 A garden type window shall not extend farther out from the face of the building
by more than 24 inches.

A. Maximum horizontal dimension 8 feet

B. Maximum vertical dimension 6 feet.

6.4 A garden type window shall be permitted in the following areas:

A. Kitchen

B. Breakfast nook

C. Dining room

D. A window location that projects into an enclosed patio area.

6.5 A garden type window is not allowed in the following conditions:

A. Where projection impedes a pedestrian walkway

B. Above the first floor UNLESS it would project into an existing

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 22 of 26



breezeway.

6.6 A garden type window must not compromise the fire rating of the wall that it is
installed in.

7.0 APPLICATIONS

7.1 All windows are to comply with current building codes.

7.2 A scaled floorplan showing all new or retrofit locations is required.

A. All retrofit bedroom window installations must meet minimum egress
requirements. See Section 10

7.3 Top of window heights shall be at 6’-8” (6 feet 8 inches).  Any variation is 
subject to review and approval by the ACSC.

7.4 Size of retrofit windows to be as large as possible with in an existing
opening.

A. All new or retrofit windows in a bedroom shall comply with minimum
egress requirements as dictated by current building codes.  See
Section 10.0 reference.

7.5 Casement windows are not permitted where:

A. The opening swings into an area where regular building / landscaping
maintenance is required.

B. The opening swings into a pedestrian walkway.

8.0 MAINTENANCE

8.1 Member is responsible for all upkeep and maintenance of all new or
replacement windows.

8.2  If new or replacement windows fall into a state of disrepair, the mutual
at its discretion may make any necessary repairs and charge the
member for such repairs.

9.0 WINDOW STYLES (see attached)

10.0 EGRESS WINDOW GUIDELINES (see attached)

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 23 of 26



Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 24 of 26



SECTION 10.0 EGRESS WINDOW GUIDELINES

Egress Windows are required in all sleeping rooms.

Egress Window Size and Dimensions: 
1. Minimum 5.7 square feet of net

clear opening area. 
2. Minimum 24 inches of net clear

height opening. 
3. Minimum 20 inches of net clear

width opening. 

NOTE: THESE REMAIN SUBJECT TO CURRENT 
BUILDING CODES. 

Attachment 4

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 25 of 26



 RESOLUTION 03-24-XX  
REVISE STANDARD 34: WINDOWS AND WINDOW ATTACHMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual recognizes the need to amend 
standards and create new standards as necessary; and  

WHEREAS, the Mutual recognized the need to revise Standard 34: Windows and 
Window Attachments;   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby adopts revisions and amendments to Standard 34: Windows 
and Window Attachments as attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-19-09 adopted January 15, 2019, is 
hereby superseded and canceled; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.   

JULY INITIAL NOTIFICATION: Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff 
recommends that a motion be made and seconded to accept the resolution and allow 
discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then 
recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board 
Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Attachment 5

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 26 of 26


	Agenda Item #9 Variance Requests.pdf
	Third ACSC Packet- Agenda July 08, 2024.pdf
	Agenda Item #9a 5367-C Variance to Replace Window with Sliding Glass Door and Paver Patio on.pdf
	5367-C Packet.pdf
	5367-C Packet.pdf
	Attachment 1 Application form.pdf

	Attachment 2 Photos.pdf
	Attachment 3 Aerial and location map.pdf
	Attachment 4 site plans_floor plan with notes.pdf

	Attachment 5 Conditions of approval.pdf
	Attachment 6 Resolution.pdf

	Third ACSC Packet- Agenda July 08, 2024.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda July 08, 2024.pdf
	Third ACSC Packet- Agenda July 08, 2024.pdf
	Third ACSC Packet- Agenda July 08, 2024.pdf
	Agenda Item #3 Approval of the Meeting Report for June 10, 2024.pdf
	Agenda Item #10a Revision to Standard 18 Gutters and Downspouts.pdf
	Staff Report Packet Revision to Standard 18.pdf
	Staff Report Revision to Standard 18.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Attachment 1 – Current Standard 18 Gutters and Downspouts.pdf
	Attachment 2 – Current Resolution 03-23-144.pdf
	STANDARD 18: GUTTERS AND DOWNSPOUTS

	Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 18 Gutters and Downspouts.pdf
	Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 18 Gutters and Downspouts.pdf

	Attachment 5  – Proposed Resolution 03-24-XX Standard 18.pdf

	Agenda Item #10b Revision to Standard 34 Windows & Window Attachments.pdf
	Staff Report Revision to Standard 34.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Staff Report Packet Revision to Standard 34.pdf
	Attachment 1 – Current Standard 34 Windows & Window Attachments.pdf
	Standard 34 Windows and Window Attachments
	windowegress

	Staff Report Packet Revision to Standard 34.pdf
	Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 34 Windows & Window Attachments.pdf
	Staff Report Packet Revision to Standard 34.pdf
	Attachment 2 – Current Resolution 03-19-09.pdf
	Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 34 Windows & Window Attachments.pdf
	Attachment 5  – Proposed Resolution 03-24-XX Standard 34.pdf











